
UNITED
NATIONS E

Economic and Social
Council

Distr.
GENERAL

E/CN.4/1999/SR.61
19 October 1999

ENGLISH
Original:  FRENCH

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS

Fifty-fifth session

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 61st MEETING

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 29 April 1999, at 11.30 a.m.

Chairperson:  Ms. ANDERSON       (Ireland)

CONTENTS

CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT RESOLUTIONS RELATING TO AGENDA ITEM 6 (continued)

RATIONALIZATION OF THE WORK OF THE COMMISSION (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages.  They
should be set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the
record.  They should be sent within one week of the date of this document to
the Official Records Editing Section, room E.4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public meetings of the Commission
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum, to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE.99-13330  (E)



E/CN.4/1999/SR.61
page 2

The meeting was called to order at 11.30 a.m

CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT RESOLUTIONS RELATING TO AGENDA ITEM 6 (continued)

Draft resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.40 (Defamation of Islam)

Proposed amendments to draft resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.40 (E/CN.4/1999/L.90)
Subamendments to the amendments to draft resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.40
contained in document E/CN.4/1999/L.90 (E/CN.4/1999/L.104)

1. Mr. AKRAM (Pakistan), introducing draft resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.40 on
behalf of the States Members of the United Nations that were members of the
Organization of the Islamic Conference, said that, in the past few years,
there had been new manifestations of intolerance and misunderstanding, not to
say hatred, of Islam and Muslims in various parts of the world.  It was to be
feared that those manifestations might become as widespread and endemic as
antisemitism had been in the past.  There was a tendency in some countries and
in the international media to portray Islam as a religion hostile to human
rights, threatening to the Western world and associated with terrorism and
violence, whereas, with the Quran, Islam had given the world its first human
rights charter.  No other religion received such constant negative media
coverage.  That defamation compaign was reflected in growing intolerance
towards Muslims.  

2. The Commission on Human Rights had to stand up against that campaign. 
Efforts had already been made to promote better understanding of Islam when
OIC and the Office of the High Commissioner had organized a seminar on Islamic
perspectives on the Universal Declaration of Human Rights in November 1998. 
The draft resolution under consideration had been the subject of openended
consultations and its sponsors had shown a willingness to cooperate by
agreeing to make several amendments.  They had, for example, decided that the
words “in certain countries” should be added to operative paragraph 1 and the
fifth preambular paragraph in order to take account of the legitimate view
that the problem was not universal.  His delegation sincerely hoped that the
draft resolution could thus be adopted by consensus.

3. Mr. HÖYNCK (Germany) introducing document E/CN.4/1999/L.90 on behalf of
the sponsors, which had been joined by the Czech Republic, Latvia, Norway and
Poland, said that, although his delegation understood some of the concerns
which had led the sponsors of draft resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.40 to submit that
text, it was of the opinion that the draft resolution's overall design was not
balanced, since it referred exclusively to the negative stereotyping of Islam,
whereas other religions had been and continued to be subjected to various
forms of discrimination, intolerance and even persecution.  The European Union
was attached to the principles of tolerance and freedom of conscience, thought
and religion for all.  The amendments proposed in document E/CN.4/1999/L.90
were designed precisely to broaden the issue and deal equally with all
religions.  They would, for example, involve amending the title of the draft
resolution and the fifth preambular paragraph and replacing the last part of
paragraph 1 and part of paragraph 5 by a general reference to negative
religious stereotyping.    



E/CN.4/1999/SR.61
page 3

4. Mr. SINGH (India) said that India was opposed to any kind of
discrimination, including on grounds of religion.  It was a country where all
religions were represented and it had the second largest Muslim population in
the world.  It was unequivocally opposed to any defamation or negative
stereotyping of any religion, including Islam.  It was, moreover, seriously
concerned about the attempts being made to associate Islam with terrorism.  It
had longstanding ties of friendship and cooperation with most of the OIC
countries which had submitted the draft resolution.

5. As a secular State, however, India stressed, first, that the matter
under consideration belonged under agenda item 11 (Civil and political
rights), subitem (e) (Religious intolerance), not under the item on racism. 
Secondly, the best way to combat defamation and negative stereotyping was to
promote tolerance and strengthen legislation.  Thirdly, manifestations of
discrimination based on religion were prevalent everywhere in the world and
were not directed at Islam alone.  For all those reasons, India was opposed to
draft resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.40.  It would be prepared to support the
amendments contained in document E/CN.4/1999/L.90, provided that the words “in
their respective national contexts” were added at the end of the amended
preambular paragraph 5, after the words “minority religions”.  The concept of
“minority” or “majority” religion must necessarily be considered in the
context of each country.

6. Mr. SUMI (Japan) said that he understood the concerns of the sponsors of
draft resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.40, but the problem they wanted to denounce 
did not relate only to Islam.  Amendments should therefore be made to the
text submitted so that it might be adopted by consensus.  In view of the
subject matter of the draft resolution, the fact of voting on the text might
give the impression that the international community did not share the
sponsors' concerns and that might further strengthen the prejudices they were
trying to combat.  In any event, his delegation would have liked the draft
resolution to be worded in more general terms.  It would also have been better
to deal with it under agenda item 11 on the question of religious intolerance.

7. Mr. AKRAM (Pakistan), introducing the proposed subamendments contained
in document E/CN.4/1999/L.104 and explaining the position of the member
countries of the Islamic Conference, said that the problem faced by Islam was
of a very special nature and its manifestations took many forms.  Some people
did not hesitate, for example, to refer to an “Islamic bomb”, but no one would
ever think of making such an association with another religion.  Islam was
being portrayed as a threat to the international system, with many negative
images which incited to hatred of Muslims.  That phenomenon endangered world
stability and was contrary to the principle of the universality of human
rights.

8. The amendments submitted by Germany were designed to remove most of the
specific references to Islam contained in the draft resolution, but that would
defeat the purpose of the text, which was to bring a problem relating
specifically to that religion to the attention of the international community. 
The States which had submitted the draft resolution could therefore not agree
to the proposed amendments.  They appealed to Germany and the other
cosponsors of the amendments to withdraw them.



E/CN.4/1999/SR.61
page 4

9. Mr. HÖYNCK (Germany) said that, despite intensive consultations on the
draft resolution itself and on the amendments contained in document
E/CN.4/1999/L.90, it had unfortunately been impossible to find common ground. 
The member States of the Organization of the Islamic Conference had persisted
in making the draft resolution exclusive in nature and had found it necessary
to submit subamendments to amendments designed to correct the balance of the
text.  His delegation therefore requested the members of the Commission to
give their full support to the amendments which it had submitted and whose
acceptance would make it possible to adopt the draft resolution by consensus. 
The amendment to document E/CN.4/1999/L.90 proposed by India was welcome
because it made the text clearer.

10. Mr. PALIHAKKARA (Sri Lanka) said that the proposed amendments and
subamendments had complicated the Commission's task.  Since he knew that a
compromise solution could be found, he urged the two parties to make an effort
in order to avoid a vote.

11. Mr. AKRAM (Pakistan) said he also thought that a compromise was
possible.  He proposed that the meeting should be suspended to enable the two
parties to try one last time to overcome their differences.

12. The CHAIRPERSON said that, if she heard no objection, she would take it
that the members of the Commission agreed to Pakistan's proposal.

13. It was so decided.

The meeting was suspended at 12.15 p.m. and resumed at 12.30 p.m.

14. The CHAIRPERSON said she believed that constructive discussions were
under way on draft resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.40.  She proposed that agenda
item 20 should be taken up so that the Commission's work would not be further
delayed.

RATIONALIZATION OF THE WORK OF THE COMMISSION (agenda item 20) (continued)

15. The CHAIRPERSON said that, as agreed, draft resolutions
E/CN.4/1999/L.62/Rev.1 and E/CN.4/1999/L.101, both entitled “Enhancing the
effectiveness of the mechanisms of the Commission on Human Rights”, were
withdrawn and replaced by a statement by the Chairperson, which she read out.

16. All participants in the Commission were conscious of the need to enhance
the effectiveness of the mechanisms of the Commission and make progress in
that regard.  At its fiftyfifth session, the Commission had carefully
considered the report of the Bureau of the fiftyfourth session
(E/CN.4/1999/104), which had been submitted in accordance with
decision 1998/112 and had moved the discussion forward significantly, and the
Commission was determined to maintain that impetus.

17. Given the scope of the issues involved and the limited time available at
the fiftyfifth session, the Commission had decided to establish an
intersessional openended working group to consider the question of enhancing
the effectiveness of its mechanisms.  The Chairperson of the Working Group was
to be designated within one month of the closure of the session.  Regional



E/CN.4/1999/SR.61
page 5

coordinators were requested to consult in that regard as a matter of priority
and the consultations should include the possibility of appointing one or more
ViceChairpersons of the Working Group.  The Working Group would have up
to 15 meeting days at its disposal during the coming year and should be able
to complete its work in advance of the Commission's next session.  The
Chairperson of the Working Group was requested to submit a full report,
including recommendations for endorsement by the Commission.

18. With regard to decisionmaking in the Working Group, the value of a
consensual approach had been fully recognized, but concern had been expressed
that a consensus requirement might impede progress on work in areas where a
broad representative majority wished to move forward.  It had therefore been
agreed that, as soon as the broadest possible agreement had been reached on
particular issues, all participants in the Working Group would be flexible
enough to facilitate a consensual outcome.

19. The Commission had considered the various parts of the Bureau's report
and had reached a number of conclusions.

20. As to special procedure mandates, the Commission had decided to take the
following steps immediately:  to ensure the prompt implementation of special
procedure mandates, the Commission would propose to the Economic and Social
Council that its regular May organizational session should include the
consideration of any proposals regarding special procedure mandates adopted at
the Commission's annual session (recommendation 4); to help maintain the
necessary objectivity of individual officeholders, tenure in any given
mandate, whether thematic or countryspecific, would be no more than six years
(recommendation 6); in order to deal with documentation problems, special
procedures reports should continue to be submitted by midDecember and
executive summaries describing the key elements to be submitted to the
Commission for its consideration should be included with each report
(recommendation 8 (a) to (e));  with regard to responsibility for appointments
to special procedure posts and the duration of mandates, the Commission
considered that the current practice was broadly satisfactory, but was
prepared to discuss any recommendation from the intersessional Working Group
(recommendations 3 and 5).

21. In the light of the foregoing, the Commission was requesting the
Working Group to focus primarily on the following areas in preparing
recommendations for action at the fiftysixth session:  how to rationalize and
strengthen the existing network of thematic special procedures
(recommendation 1); how to support the mechanisms in responding urgently in
the event of allegations or concerns of serious human rights violations
(recommendations 2 and 8 (f)); how to make the consideration of reports of
special mechanisms at the Commission's sessions more meaningful
(recommendations 7 and 9); and how to ensure that, between annual sessions of
the Commission, there was effective ongoing followup on the recommendations
of special procedures and related conclusions taken at the Commission's
preceding session (recommendation 10).



E/CN.4/1999/SR.61
page 6

22. The Commission had agreed that the 1503 procedure had to be overhauled
and the intersessional Working Group was invited to submit recommendations
for that purpose at the fiftysixth session, taking account of the detailed
suggestions contained in the Bureau report (recommendation 11).

23. The Commission, which valued the distinctive role of the SubCommission,
considered that it too was in need of thorough review and, as a first step,
was recommending to the Economic and Social Council an immediate change of
title to “SubCommission on the Promotion and Protection of Human Rights”. 
The Commission requested the intersessional Working Group to draw up
recommendations for submission at the fiftysixth session, taking account of
recommendation 12.

24. The Commission had taken note of recommendation 13, which identified a
number of important issues, including laying the groundwork for
standardsetting working groups and establishing timeframes and
decisionmaking methods.  The role of the chairpersons of such groups had to
be defined.  The Commission requested the Working Group to formulate a
recommendation on that question for consideration at the fiftysixth session.

25. In conclusion, the Commission once again emphasized that it wanted to be
able to mark its next session with the adoption of a coherent and substantial
set of measures aimed at enhancing its effectiveness.

26. Mr. AKRAM (Pakistan), speaking on behalf of the likeminded group of
countries, said that the statement which the Chairperson had just read out was
an attempt to bridge the gap in the Commission on the question of the report
of the Bureau on the Commission's fiftyfourth session (E/CN.4/1999/104). 
Although the statement was not entirely satisfactory, Pakistan and the
likeminded group could live with it in order to ensure that a detailed and
comprehensive examination of all the issues contained in the Bureau's report
would take place in the intersessional Working Group.

27. Pakistan attached particular importance to certain basic issues,
particularly the scope and methods of work of the intersessional
Working Group.  In the first place, it wanted the Working Group also to
consider the working methods of the Commission.  Secondly, it was clear that
the consensus requirement meant that no delegation would vote against any
proposal.  Thirdly, the comprehensive review of the Bureau's report also
implied that all aspects referred to by the Bureau in its report would be
examined, i.e.  recommendations, proposals and observations.  Although the
statement by the Chairperson listed all the points on which the Working Group
should focus during the preparation of its recommendations, Pakistan pointed
out that the list would not determine priorities.  Lastly, the adoption of
what the Chairperson had called “coherent and substantial measures” implied
that all issues were interconnected and must be dealt with in a holistic way.  

28. On that basis, Pakistan and the like-minded group would not press for a
vote on draft resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.64/Rev.1.

29. Mr. BENITEZ (Argentina), speaking on behalf of the 56 sponsors of draft
resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.101, said that he supported the statement by the
Chairperson.  That statement, which was a compromise for which all delegations



E/CN.4/1999/SR.61
page 7

had worked, was a key step forward in the rationalization of the Commission's
work and should enable it to continue with the process it had begun. 
Argentina hoped that the Working Group would adopt the same constructive
approach and be as flexible as the members of the Commission and that specific
results would be achieved during the coming year.  

30. Argentina would also like the intersessional Working Group to work in
close cooperation with all Commission mechanisms and nongovernmental
organizations.

31. Mr. HÖYCK (Germany) said that he was both disappointed that all the
concerns expressed by the members of the Commission had not been taken into
account in the statement by the Chairperson and relieved that it had finally
been possible to adopt a text that was acceptable to all.  His country fully
understood Pakistan's point of view, but was of the opinion that, for the sake
of the Working Group, the statement that the Commission had just adopted
should not be interpreted, at least not at present.  

32. Mr. ALFONSO MARTINEZ (Cuba) said that, like others, his delegation was
satisfied with the text whose adoption had been possible only because all
States had demonstrated the willingness to compromise and had adopted a
consensual approach.  

33. He drew the Argentine delegation's attention to the fact that Cuba was
not a sponsor of draft resolution E/CN.4/1999/L.101.  Cuba was not, however,
opposed to the review of Commission mechanisms, but simply to review for
review's sake, an exercise which might deadlock the Commission and create more
problems than already existed.

34. The CHAIRPERSON invited the Commission to resume its consideration of
agenda item 6.  She requested the delegations concerned to inform the
Commission of the progress made in the consultations on the draft resolution
entitled “Defamation of Islam” (E/CN.4/1999/L.40).

35. Mr. AKRAM (Pakistan) said that the consultations on that draft
resolution had been very successful and that progress had been made on thorny
issues.  A new document would therefore be prepared and Pakistan sincerely
hoped that it would be satisfactory to all.  It would, however, have to be
discussed at a forthcoming meeting.

The meeting rose at 1 p.m.


